1986

H.C. Heninger and Doris W. Heninger v. Ninth  
Circuit Court, State of Utah, Washington County,  
St. George Department, and Robert F. Owens,  
Circuit Judge : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

The following issues are put before this Court:

1) Was Respondent's appropriate remedy direct appeal to the district court from the circuit court's forfeiture ruling and did their failure to raise that appeal constitute a waiver?

2) Did the district court act improperly and without authority by granting an extraordinary writ?

3) Did the district court lack constitutional authority when it exercised supervisory authority over the Ninth Circuit Court?

4) Does Judge Owens have the authority and discretion to supervise bondsmen in the Ninth Circuit Court and was the revocation of Respondent's bonding privileges proper?

5) Did the district court improperly interpret the language of Utah Code Ann. § 77-20-7 (1953, as amended) regarding the effective term of bonds in the state of Utah?

---

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF UTAH

---

H. C. HENINGER and DORIS W. :  
HENINGER, :  
 :  
Plaintiffs-Respondents, :  
 :  
vs. :  
 :  
NINTH CIRCUIT COURT, State of :  
Utah, Washington County, :  
St. George Department, and : Case No. 20976  
ROBERT F. OWENS, Circuit Judge, :  
 : Category No. 13b  
Defendants-Appellants. :

---

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Respondents are bondsmen who petitioned the Fifth Judicial District Court, Washington County, for an extraordinary writ asking the District Court to exercise supervisory power over Appellants and claiming that the Ninth Circuit Court acted without authority in forfeiting certain bonds and revoking the bonding privileges of the bondsmen in that court. The District Court granted the writ and issued a summary judgment order holding that revocation of bonding privileges is prohibited without notice and hearing, and that imposition of sentence exonerates the liability of bail bondsmen by operation of law. Consequently, the Ninth Circuit Court objected to the District Court's ruling and filed this appeal.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Appellant Robert F. Owens (hereinafter "Judge Owens") presides as judge in the Ninth Circuit Court, Washington County

(R. 107). Respondents are bondsmen (hereinafter "bondsmen") who, prior to the initiation of this action in the Fifth District Court, Washington County, were qualified by Judge Owens to write bonds in the Ninth Circuit Court (R. 107). In January, 1984, Judge Owens and the bondsmen entered into an agreement whereby the bondsmen would be authorized to file undertakings of bail in the Ninth Circuit Court, Washington County, upon the condition that the bonds would continue after sentencing and throughout probation (R. 107). The language of the individual bonds provides that the terms would continue through execution of sentence (R. 61, 107).

The bondsmen, pursuant to the agreement and authorization by Judge Owens, filed undertakings of bail in the Ninth Circuit Court in behalf of four criminal defendants: Samuel Benally, Geoffrey C. Greening, Jonathon S. Marshall, and Dennis B. Ashcroft (R. 19, 32-39). All four cases for which bonds were taken involve charges of driving under the influence of alcohol (R. 20, 22, 23, 62-63). In each case, the defendant in the Ninth Circuit Court failed to make himself subject to the Ninth Circuit Court's jurisdiction for the purposes of executing sentences imposed by that court in that they failed to abide by the terms of probation, failed to appear at the Washington County Jail, and/or failed to pay fines assessed as part of the circuit court's sentence (R. 20, 22, 63). Bond forfeiture hearings were held in the Ninth Circuit Court on May 6, 1985, and July 9, 1985, at which times the bondsmen requested exoneration of the undertakings (R. 24). Exoneration was denied by the Ninth

Circuit Court and the bonds were forfeited (R. 24). The bondsmen did not appeal from the forfeiture hearings.

On May 28, 1985, the bondsmen commenced an action in the Fifth Judicial District Court, Washington County, seeking an extraordinary writ and order requesting that the District Court exercise supervisory authority over the Ninth Circuit Court (R. 1, 18, 27-28). The bondsmen further requested the District Court specify the duties and obligations of the bondsmen in the Ninth Circuit Court (R. 27-28).

In a letter to the Washington County Sheriff dated May 29, 1985, Judge Owens exercised his discretionary powers and authority over bondsmen in his court by rescinding authorization previously given to accept bailbonds from the bondsmen. Judge Owens withdrew the bondsmen's authority on the grounds that it was clear by the bondsmen's actions that they no longer intended to comply with the provisions of law, the specific language of each undertaking, and the agreement with the Ninth Circuit Court concerning the term of the bonds (R. 61, 107).

On September 22, 1985, Judge Burns, Fifth Judicial District Court, exercised supervisory authority over the Ninth Circuit Court by signing a summary judgment order (R. 118-19). This order provided (1) that revocation of the bondsmen's bonding privileges is prohibited unless afforded prior notice and hearing, and (2) that imposition of sentence relieves the obligation of the bondsmen and exonerates the undertaking of bail by operation of law (R. 118-119). The summary judgment was objected to by the Judge Owens in a pleading filed in the District Court on September 24, 1985 (R. 101-105).

### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

Bondsmen's appropriate remedy was to appeal the Ninth Circuit Court's forfeiture rulings directly to the District Court and their failure to raise that appeal constitutes a waiver. The Ninth Circuit Court had jurisdiction over the bondsmen and the subject matter at the time the District Court improperly granted an extraordinary writ. The Ninth Circuit Court and Judge Owens acted well within proper jurisdiction and bondsmen had an appropriate remedy of direct appeal from the Ninth Circuit Court's forfeiture rulings to the District Court. Therefore, the District Court acted without jurisdiction in granting an extraordinary writ.

Further, the District Court lacked constitutional authority when it exercised supervisory authority over the Ninth Circuit Court, thereby acting without requisite jurisdiction.

Moreover, Judge Owens had authority and discretion to supervise bondsmen in his jurisdiction. Because of bondsmen's failure to comply with the terms of the undertakings and the agreement with the Ninth Circuit Court, Judge Owens properly exercised his discretion when he revoked bondsmen's privileges to file undertakings of bail in the Ninth Circuit Court.

inally, the District Court's ruling that an undertaking of bail is exonerated when sentence is imposed is contradicted by the language of Utah Code Annotated § 77-20-7 (1953, as amended) and of the bonds which requires liability to extend through execution of the sentence imposed.

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I

BONDSMEN'S APPROPRIATE REMEDY WAS TO APPEAL THE NINTH CIRCUIT COURT'S FORFEITURE RULINGS DIRECTLY TO THE DISTRICT COURT AND THEIR FAILURE TO RAISE THAT APPEAL CONSTITUTES A WAIVER.

Appeal procedures from the circuit court to the district court are provided for by law. The Utah Constitution grants the district courts appellate jurisdiction as provided by statute. The Utah Constitution, Article VIII, § 5 (effective July 1, 1985) provides:

The district court shall have original jurisdiction in all matters except as limited by this constitution or by statute, and power to issue all extraordinary writs. The district court shall have appellate jurisdiction as provided by statute. The jurisdiction of all other courts, both original and appellate, shall be provided by statute. Except for matters filed originally with the supreme court, there shall be in all cases an appeal of right from the court of original jurisdiction to a court with appellate jurisdiction over the cause.

Utah Code Ann. § 78-3-4, of the District Court Act (1953, as amended), grants appellate jurisdiction from inferior courts to the district court and § 78-3-5 provides for appeals to the district courts from final judgments of the circuit courts.

An appeal lies from judgments from forfeited bonds obtained pursuant to the Bail Forfeiture Procedure Act, § 77-2a-1, et. seq. (1983). There have been no reported decisions by this Court construing the provisions of that Act. However, an 1884 Utah case held that appeal is not available from a bail forfeiture order. People v. Tremayne, 3 Utah 331, 3 P. 85

(1884). Although Tremayne has not been expressly overruled, the holding is without merit in light of recent statutory revisions and many well-reasoned cases from other jurisdictions which allow appeals from bail forfeiture rulings. Cases with substantially similar provisions finding that orders dealing with the forfeiture of bail are appealable include: People v. Wilcox, 53 Cal.2d 651, 2 Cal. Reprtr. 754, 349 P.2d 522 (1960); Smaldon v. United States, 211 F.2d 161 (10th Cir. 1954); United States v. Cardina Casualty Ins. Co., 236 F.2d 451 (7th Cir. 1956); State v. Cotton, (La., 1926) 172 La. 295, 110 So.480 (1926); State v. Wright, 51 Wash.2d 606, 320 P.2d 646 (1958); and State v. O'Day, 36 Wash.2d 146, 216 P.2d 732 (1950).

Moreover, this Court has entertained an appeal from a circuit court bail forfeiture order which had been appealed to the district court. Walton v. Circuit Court, No. 16281 (Utah 1979) (See Appendix A). Appealability of a bond forfeiture order was not an issue, but the case was successfully appealed to the district court and the district court order was appealed to the Utah Supreme Court. This Court did not mention Tremayne in its decision. Consequently, bond forfeiture orders appear to be appealable in Utah, notwithstanding Tremayne.

Bondsmen initiated the Petition for an Extraordinary Writ below before all of the forfeiture provisions in the Bond Forfeiture Procedure Act could be exhausted, therefore the Petition was untimely at best. The first bond forfeiture hearing was held on May 6, 1985, the Petition for Extraordinary Writ was initiated May 28, 1985, and the second bond forfeiture hearing

was scheduled for July 9, 1985. The bondsmen preemptively commenced the action below seeking relief from the Ninth Circuit Court's actions even before the second bond hearing was scheduled and complained of an anticipated result prior to any action on the remaining two undertakings. The bondsmen have not appealed orders from either bond forfeiture hearing. Bondsmen should have availed themselves of the proper judicial remedies and procedures pursuant to the Bail Forfeiture Procedures Act and filed a timely appeal. A failure to do so constituted a waiver and does not warrant relief from the District Court in the form of an Extraordinary Writ. Anderson v. Baker, 5 Utah 2d 33, 296 P.2d 283 (1956).

#### POINT II

THE DISTRICT COURT ACTED IMPROPERLY AND WITHOUT AUTHORITY IN GRANTING BONDSMEN'S PETITION FOR AN EXTRAORDINARY WRIT.

Pursuant to the Constitution of Utah, Article VIII § 5 (effective July 1, 1985), district courts have the power to issue all extraordinary writs. However, that power is limited to situations in which no other remedy is available and substantial injustice would otherwise occur.

It is a well established principle that an extraordinary writ is not a proceeding for general review. Commercial Security Bank v. Phillips, 655 P.2d 678 (Utah, 1982); Anderson v. Baker, 5 Utah 2d 33, 296 P.2d 283 (1956); Olsen v. District Court, 106 Utah 220, 147 P.2d 471 (1944); Robinson v. City Court for City of Ogden, 112 Utah 36, 105 P.2d 256 (1947); Chesney v. District Court of Salt Lake County, 108 P.2d 514

(Utah, 1941). Rule 65B(a), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure (hereinafter "URCP"), provides in pertinent part, "where no other plain, speedy, adequate remedy exists, relief may be obtained by appropriate action under these rules . . . ." [Emphasis added]. Pleadings seeking relief by way of extraordinary writ pursuant to Rule 65B, URCP, must specifically designate jurisdictional excess or abuse of discretion claimed and are subject to being dismissed if they merely set forth conclusions. Angell v. Sixth Judicial District Ct., 656 P.2d 405 (Utah, 1982); Lee v. Provo City Civil Service Commission, 582 P.2d 485 (Utah, 1978).

This Court has held that if the lower court is proceeding without jurisdiction, but it appears that there is an adequate remedy, a writ should generally not issue. Allen v. Lindbeck, 97 Utah 471, 93 P.2d 920 (1939). Also if there is no want or excess of jurisdiction and an adequate remedy exists, a writ should never issue. Olsen v. District Court, *supra*. Furthermore, this Court has held that if there was an adequate remedy of appeal from a lower court that has jurisdiction over the parties and the subject matter, and the party permits it to lapse, he does so at his peril and an extraordinary writ should not lie. Anderson v. Baker, 5 Utah 2d 33, 296 P.2d 283 (1956).

Applying the above principles to the instant case, if the Ninth Circuit Court has jurisdiction over bondsmen and the subject matter, and if appeal to the district court was an adequate remedy, the writ was improperly issued. Therefore, since the Ninth Circuit Court has jurisdiction over bondsmen and bond forfeitures, and an appeal from a bond forfeiture is

available, then an extraordinary writ should not lie and the District Court acted improperly and without authority in granting the bondsmen's extraordinary writ.

### POINT III

THE DISTRICT COURT LACKED CONSTITUTIONAL AUTHORITY WHEN IT EXERCISED SUPERVISORY AUTHORITY OVER THE NINTH CIRCUIT COURT.

The District Court apparently issued the extraordinary writ under what was perceived as supervisory authority over the Ninth Circuit Court. However, a recent amendment to the Constitution of Utah has removed all supervisory power district courts previously had over circuit courts. Article VIII, § 5 of the Constitution of Utah, effective July, 1985, states as follows:

The district court shall have original jurisdiction in all matters except as limited by this constitution or by statute, and power to issue all extraordinary writs. The district court shall have appellate jurisdiction as provided by statute. The jurisdiction of all other courts, both original and appellate, shall be provided by statute. Except for matters filed originally with the supreme court, there shall be in all cases an appeal of right from the court of original jurisdiction to a court with appellate jurisdiction over the cause.

The prior Constitutional provision, Article VIII, § 7, granting jurisdiction to the district court provided:

The district court shall have original jurisdiction in all matters civil and criminal, not excepted in this Constitution, and not prohibited by law; appellate jurisdiction from all inferior courts and tribunals, and a supervisory control of the same. The district courts or any judge thereof, shall have power to issue writs of habeas corpus, mandamus, injunction, quo warranto, certiorari, prohibition and other

writs necessary to carry into effect their orders, judgments and decrees, and to give them a general control over inferior courts and tribunals within their respective jurisdictions. [Emphasis added.]

The former provision of the Constitution granted the district court supervisory control over inferior courts. The new Constitutional provision conspicuously omitts the language dealing with the district court's supervisory powers over inferior courts, i.e. circuit courts. When the new constitutional provision took effect, this provision specifically removed any prior supervisory authority the district court had over the circuit court under the repealed provisions.

The District Court has no statutory authority to supervise circuit courts. Section 78-3-4 of the District Court Act, enacted in 1943 and amended in 1983, provides:

The district court shall have original jurisdiction in all matters civil and criminal, not excepted in the Constitution and not prohibited by law; appellate jurisdiction from all inferior courts and tribunals, and a supervisory control of the same. The district courts, or any judges thereof, shall have power to issue writs of habeas corpus, mandamus, injunction, quo warranto, certiorari, prohibition, and other writs necessary to carry into effect their orders, judgments and decrees, and to give them a general control over inferior courts and tribunals within their respective jurisdictions . . . . [Emphasis added.]

This provision was enacted pursuant to the authority specified in Article VIII, § 7 of the prior Constitutional article and grants to the district court supervisory authority over inferior courts, in conformity with the prior constitutional provision. However, with the adoption of the new Judicial article, that portion of

§ 78-3-4 granting the district court supervisory authority over inferior courts is inconsistent with the new Article VIII, § 5.

As a general principle, a statute existing at the adoption of a constitution or constitutional amendment cannot be upheld if it is opposed to the plain terms of the Constitution. In such a case, the statute may be regarded as repealed by the constitutional provision by implication. United States v. Mack, 295 U.S. 480, 79 L.Ed. 1559, 55 S.Ct. 813 (1935); Massey v. United States, 291 U.S. 608, 78 L.Ed. 1019, 54 S.Ct. 532 (1934); United States v. Chambers, 291 U.S. 217, 78 L.Ed. 763, 54 S.Ct. 434 (1934); National Prohibition Case, 253 U.S. 350, 64 L.Ed. 946, 40 S.Ct. 486 (1920); Veterans' Welfare Board v. Riley, 189 Cal. 159, 208 P. 678 (1922); Jelm v. Jelm, 155 Ohio 226, 98 NE2d 401 (1951).

The final test in determining whether a statute is repealed by implication by a constitutional provision is: Does the Legislature have the present right to enact statutes substantially like the statute in question under the new constitutional provision? Monaghan v. Lewis, 5 Penn. 218, 59 A 948 (Delaware 1905). In applying the test to the instant case, the Legislature had the right to enact a statute substantially like § 78-3-4, except for the supervisory language. The Legislature does not have the right to enact a statute which would grant to the district courts supervisory powers over inferior courts. Further, if the authority of the legislature to enact a particular statute is derived solely from a particular constitutional provision, a repeal of such provision operates as

a repeal of the statute. United States v. Constantine, 296 U.S. 287, 80 L.Ed. 233, 56 S.Ct. 223 (1935). United States v. Chambers, supra. The powers given the district court by constitutional provision cannot be enlarged or abridged by the legislature. Robinson v. Durand, 36 Utah 93, 104 P. 760 (1908). Therefore, a repeal of the constitutional provisions dealing with the district courts supervisory authority over inferior courts operates as a repeal of those provisions of § 78-3-4 granting supervisory powers of the district court over inferior courts.

Section 4 of Senate Joint Resolution No. 1, Laws 1984 (2d S.S.), providing for the repeal and reenactment of Article VIII, states in part:

Existing statutes and rules on the effective date [July 1, 1985] of this amendment [Article VIII], not inconsistent with it, shall continue in force and effect until repealed or changed by statute.

This savings clause inserted by the Legislature provides that all statutes in force and not inconsistent with the new constitutional provision shall continue until amended or repealed by the Legislature. However, by this enactment, the Legislature recognized that inconsistent statutes cannot continue in force and are therefore repealed by implication. Therefore, those provisions of § 78-3-4 granting such supervisory powers to the district court cannot be saved and are of no effect.

In the case before the Court, the District Court acted without constitutional authority when it attempted to exercise such supervisory powers over Appellants. The district court is limited to those powers granted it by the Constitution. S.L.C.

v. Christensen Co., 34 Utah 38, 95 P. 523 (1939); Wadsworth v. Santaquin City, 83 Utah 321, 28 P.2d 161 (1933); National Tunnel & Mines Co. v. Industrial Commission, 99 Utah 39, 102 P.2d 508 (1940). Consequently, the district court improperly exercised supervisory power over the circuit court.

#### POINT IV

JUDGE OWENS HAS AUTHORITY AND DISCRETION TO SUPERVISE BONDSMEN IN THE NINTH CIRCUIT COURT AND THE REVOCATION OF BONDSMEN'S BONDING PRIVILEGES WAS PROPER.

By constitutional grant of authority in Article VIII, § 5, Constitution of Utah, the Legislature enacted the Circuit Court Act of 1977, Utah Code Ann., § 78-4-1 et. seq. (1953, as amended), and created a circuit court system. The purposes of the Circuit Court Act are enumerated in § 78-4-2, as follows:

The purpose of this act is to create a statewide court of record of limited jurisdiction to provide full-time professional judicial service to every county in the state on a regular basis organized and administered in like manner to the district courts of the state. To this end this act shall be liberally construed and applied. [Emphasis added.]

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