1986

H.C. Heninger and Doris W. Heninger v. Ninth  
Circuit Court, State of Utah, Washington County,  
St. George Department, and Robert F. Owens,  
Circuit Judge : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Plaintiffs contend that the District Court acted properly and within its jurisdiction in considering the rights and obligations arising out of certain undertakings of bail.

Plaintiffs' complaint clearly sought declaratory relief, the rights and obligations were a proper subject for declaratory relief and the record is devoid of any objection made on the basis of the unavailability of declaratory relief.

Plaintiffs further contend that the Circuit Court acted outside of its discretion or abused its discretion in summarily revoking Plaintiffs' bonding authority and that the District Court acted appropriately in prohibiting the enforcement of that order until Plaintiffs were afforded due process of law.

Finally, Plaintiffs contend that the District Court properly construed the statutory language relating to the duration and termination of a bondsman's obligation and ruled in harmony with traditional principles of criminal law.

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I

THE DISTRICT COURT HAS POWER TO SUPERVISE THE  
CIRCUIT COURT BY EXTRAORDINARY WRIT.

Article VIII, §5, Constitution of Utah, effective July 1, 1985, provides in part as follows:

The District court shall have original jurisdiction in all matters except as limited by this constitution or by statute, and power to issue all extraordinary writs.  
[Emphasis added]

The power to issue such writs constitutes the power to supervise, at least within the limited scope of the writs.

Section U.C.A. 78-3-4, clearly grants the District Court supervisory jurisdiction over the Circuit Court. It reads as follows:

The district court shall have original jurisdiction in all matters civil and criminal, not excepted in the Constitution and not prohibited by law; appellate jurisdiction from all inferior courts and tribunals, and a supervisory control of the same. The district courts, or any judges thereof, shall have power to issue writs of habeas corpus, mandamus, injunction, quo warranto, certiorari, prohibition, and other writs necessary to carry into effect their orders, judgments and decrees, and to give them a general control over inferior courts and tribunals within their respective jurisdictions. Under the general supervision of the chief judge of the judicial council and subject to policies established by the judicial council, cases filed in the district court, which are also within concurrent jurisdiction of the circuit court, may be transferred to the circuit court by the presiding judge of the district court in multiple judge districts, or the district court judge in single judge districts. The transfer of these cases may be made upon the court's own motion or upon the motion of either party for adjudication. When an order is made transferring a case, the court must transmit the pleadings and papers to the circuit court to which the case is transferred. The circuit court shall have the same jurisdiction as if the case had been originally commenced in the circuit court and any appeals from final judgments shall run to the district court as provided for in section 78-4-11 unless the Supreme Court by writ of certiorari shall order the appeal heard by the Supreme Court.

Defendants argue that this section is unconstitutional or has been repealed by implication as a result of the latest amendments to our State Constitution. Defendants provide us with no legislative history which would indicate that the Legislature intended or anticipated such a result. Indeed, this section was amended in 1983 to include all of the references to the Circuit Court and the Judicial Council. The Judicial Council acquired constitutional status the following year by the amendment of Article VIII of the Constitution of Utah. The Legislature has acted to harmonize the powers and authority of the District Court

with the responsibilities of the Judicial Council. Plaintiffs see nothing in the legislation or in the constitutional amendment which would indicate that the statute as amended and reenacted in 1983 has been repealed by implication or that it is unconstitutional merely by reason of the fact that the Judicial Council has acquired constitutional status.

The Supreme Court and the District Court are the only Courts of this State which are created by the Constitution. The Circuit Court was created by an act of the Legislature. It is inconceivable that the Legislature which has the power to create or abolish the Circuit Court would not have power to provide for its supervision.

## POINT II

### THE DISTRICT COURT DID NOT ERR IN GRANTING DECLARATORY OR EXTRAORDINARY RELIEF.

Defendants' position apparently fails to recognize that the District Court's jurisdiction was invoked under four separate and distinct causes of action and relief was sought in the nature of certiorari, prohibition, and declaratory judgment. Inasmuch as the arguments relating to the availability of relief vary from one cause of action to another, Plaintiffs will treat them separately herein.

In their First Claim for Relief, Plaintiffs asked that the District Court require the Circuit Court to certify its files, records and transcripts concerning the subject criminal proceedings and asked that the District Court issue its writ

requiring Defendants to discharge Plaintiffs from liability under the subject undertakings. In their Second Claim for Relief, Plaintiffs requested declaratory judgment, asking the District Court to "construe and interpret Utah law with respect to the duties and obligations of the Plaintiffs under the facts and circumstances as set forth in the above-mentioned criminal proceedings and in similar proceedings." In their Third Claim for Relief, Plaintiffs asked that the District Court issue its order enjoining the Defendants from in any way retaliating against the Plaintiffs, including an order enjoining any unjustified interference with Plaintiffs' bonding authority. Finally, in the Fourth Claim for Relief, Plaintiffs asked that the District Court exercise its supervisory jurisdiction over Defendants and issue all orders and writs necessary in support thereof "requiring Defendants to accept the Plaintiffs undertaking barring some articulable and a justifiable reason for refusing to honor the same."

Relief was granted in the following particulars:

1. The District Court prohibited the enforcement of the Circuit Court's directive terminating Plaintiffs' bonding authority "unless and until Plaintiffs are provided with notice of the basis of any suspension or revocation of their bonding authority and given opportunity for a full hearing on the issues of their qualification and fitness to act as bondmen in the Ninth Circuit Court."

2. By way of declaratory relief, the District Court

determined that the subject undertakings of bail had been exonerated.

3. Finally the District Court exercised its supervisory jurisdiction and articulated the nature and extent of a bondsman's obligation in a criminal case.

A

AN ORDER OR WRIT IN THE NATURE OF PROHIBITION  
IS AN APPROPRIATE REMEDY.

In State ex rel. Weaver v. Dostert, W. Va., 300 S.E.2d 102 (1983), the West Virginia Supreme Court of Appeals found a Writ of Prohibition to be an appropriate remedy for staying a lower court's order revoking bonding authority until the bondsman was provided notice and a hearing.

B

THE DISTRICT COURT APPROPRIATELY GRANTED  
DECLARATORY RELIEF.

Defendants are determined to overlook the declaratory aspects of the District Court Judgment and to attack the entire Judgment on the basis of the unavailability of extraordinary relief.

U.C.A. 78-33-1 provides as follows:

The district courts within their respective jurisdictions shall have power to declare rights, status, and other legal relations, whether or not further relief is or could be claimed. No action or proceeding shall be open to objection on the ground that a declaratory judgment or decree is prayed for. The declaration may be either affirmative or negative in form and effect; and such declaration shall have the force and effect of a final judgment or decree.

The District Court had power to "declare rights, status, and other legal relationships" relating to the nature and extent of the Plaintiffs' obligations on subject undertakings of bail.

Declaratory relief is not confined to cases where no other relief was or could be granted. Gray v. Defa, 103 Utah 339, 135 P.2d 251 (1943); Whitmore v. Murray City, 107 Utah 445, 154 P.2d 748 (1944). Indeed, the Declaratory Judgment Act is remedial in nature and "its purpose is to settle and to afford relief from uncertainty and insecurity with respect to rights, status, and other legal relations; and is to be liberally construed and administered." U.C.A. 78-33-12.

C

NO APPEAL WAS AVAILABLE TO PLAINTIFFS NOR WAS ANY SUCH RIGHT WAIVED.

Defendants assert that Plaintiffs could have appealed the Circuit Court's ruling and that having failed to do so are not entitled to seek declaratory or extraordinary relief in determining their liability on outstanding undertakings of bail. Contrary to this assertion, there exists no final judgment from which Plaintiffs could have perfected an appeal.

Whenever a minute entry is made indicating that a criminal defendant failed to appear as required, that minute entry "is deemed a forfeiture of the bail which has been posted." U.C.A. 77-20a-1. No action can be initiated for the purpose of taking judgment against a surety until sixty (60) days have



elapsed from the date of the forfeiture. U.C.A. 77-20a-2.

Defendants have not initiated any proceeding against Plaintiffs or obtained any final judgment against them as sureties on the subject undertakings.

After the Defendants had indicated their intention to enforce undertakings given on behalf of persons who had failed to meet some condition of their probation, Plaintiffs initiated this action in the District Court in an attempt to have their rights and liabilities adjudicated prior to the initiation of a multitude of actions in the Circuit Court to take judgment against Plaintiffs.

Plaintiffs have no right of appeal under the rule announced in People v. Tremayne, 3 Utah 331, 3 P. 85 (1884). Defendants take the position that Tremayne no longer has any application as a result of the many changes in the bail and court structure which have occurred since that case was decided.

On page 6 of their Brief, Defendants state: "Moreover, this Court has entertained an appeal from a circuit court bail forfeiture order which had been appealed to the district court." Defendants cite Walton v. Circuit Court, Utah, Case No. 16281 (Filed December 12, 1979) and go on to say: "Appealability of a bond forfeiture order was not an issue, but the case was successfully appealed to the district court and the district court order was appealed to the Utah Supreme Court." A photocopy of the Third District Court pleadings in Walton (Verified Complaint and Petition for Issuance of Certiorari and the Summary

Judgment) are attached hereto and designated as Addendum "A" and "B". Contrary to Defendants' conclusions, the bail forfeitures in Walton were not appealed to the District Court from the Circuit Court. A complaint for declaratory judgment and a petition for extraordinary relief was filed with the District Court.

A review of these pleadings in Walton will reveal that the pleadings filed and the theories relied upon therein are virtually identical to the course followed by Plaintiffs in the instant action.

Plaintiffs act as surety on at least ten individual undertakings of bail which Defendants have refused to exonerate. If Plaintiffs' only remedy is to wait until the Circuit Court has proceeded to judgment on each undertaking and appeal each individual case to the District Court, the remedy can hardly be deemed adequate.

### POINT III

JUDGE OWENS HAS AUTHORITY AND DISCRETION TO SUPERVISE BONDSMEN IN THE NINTH CIRCUIT COURT BUT THE REVOCATION OF PLAINTIFFS' BONDING AUTHORITY WAS IMPROPER.

It has been held that the deprivation, by revocation of a license previously granted, of the right to engage in the bail bond business is a judicial act that must meet the requirements of due process of law. In Re Carter, 192 F.2d 15 (1951); Weaver v. Dostert, supra.

In Carter, supra, the United States Court of Appeals, District of Columbia, was considering the appropriateness of the

Federal District Court's action in denying a bondsman's application to do business with the Court and referring to an earlier opinion involving the same bondsman stated the following:

On appeal we held the revocation invalid for lack of "a hearing and revelation of all data upon which a decision is to be based." We held that whatever might be true of the grant of the right to engage in the bonding business, and "the deprivation of that right, once granted, is a judicial act, requiring due process of law." 192 F.2d, p.16.

The Federal District Court had taken the position that Carter's application was "in the administrative discretion of the Court". The Court of Appeals likened the application of a bondsman to that of an attorney applying to practice before a court and observed:

But both lawyers and bondsman are on quite different footing from a Court's Clerk or Bailiff. They are not completely under the Court's control, or obligated to deal with the public impartially; within wide limits they may chose how, when, where and whom they will serve. They are not commonly paid from public funds, their callings are not necessarily limited to a single person or a few persons, they cannot be deprived of their functions in a Court's discretion. 192 F.2d, pp. 16-17.

The Court of Appeals went on to state:

Old charges never brought to trial, and appellant's innocent mistake of fact on an immaterial matter, do not support the [revocation] order. Nor do any secret charges that may have been made by anonymous informants whom the appellant had no opportunity to confront and cross examine. 192 F.2d, p. 17.

The Court of Appeals concluded:

We do not imply that in our opinion the appealed order would be valid if it were administrative. Like the order involved in Carter's previous appeal, if it were upheld, it would destroy an established business. We do not imply that in our opinion a purely administrative refusal to renew, or to grant, a license to do

a lawful business could be supported if based on arbitrary grounds or made without such a "hearing and opportunity to answer . . . as would constitute due process." 192 F.2d, p. 17.

The Judgment appealed from in the instant case merely prohibits the enforcement of any order or directive suspending or evoking Plaintiff's bonding authority unless Plaintiffs are first provided with notice of the basis of any suspension or revocation and given opportunity for full hearing on the issues of their qualification and fitness.

Defendants have cited Taylor v. Waddey, 206 Tenn. 497, 334 S.W.2d 733 (1960). The factual background in Waddey, supra, is briefly stated as follows:

On May 13, 1959, one of the General Sessions Judges had notice served by the Sheriff on the appellee bondsman and bonding company to appear at a fixed place in the courthouse of Davidson County on May 20th at a fixed time "and then and there show cause why the order of November 12, 1958, approving the Petition" etc. of the bonding company and its power of attorney, should not be revoked and canceled. On May 25th after the hearing, pursuant to this Notice, the five Judges of the General Sessions Courts of Davidson County entered an order which among other things shows that "after the unanimous decision of the five Judges of the General Sessions Courts sitting en banke that the said Robert Waddey be permanently suspended from the writing of bonds in The General Sessions Court and it is, therefore, ordered, adjudged and decreed that said Robert Waddey is from and after Friday, May 22, 1959, permanently suspended from the writing of bonds in the General Sessions Court, and further that the show cause order in respect to The Athens Bonding Company be and the same is indefinitely taken under advisement." 334 S.W.2d, p. 734.

Defendants apparently cite this case for the proposition that a Court has inherent power to regulate the bonding business and that the power extends to more than an

examination of financial responsibility but includes also moral qualification. With this premise Plaintiffs heartily agree. Plaintiffs cite the case to provide the Court with a comparison of the method by which the bonding authority was terminated in that case as opposed to the method by which Plaintiffs' bonding authority was terminated in the instance case.

The Supreme Court of Tennessee went on to state:

So long as the bondsman complies with the statutes above referred to and meets a fair and reasonable standard in the conduct of his business before these courts, then there is no one going to prevent him from practicing his profession therein. 334 S.W.2d, p. 737.

Defendants quote the same language from Taylor v. Waddey, supra, suggesting that Plaintiffs have somehow failed to meet "a fair and reasonable standard in the conduct of [their] business" before the Ninth Circuit Court. Plaintiffs challenge Defendants to articulate one incident of misconduct supported by the record of the District Court.

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